GRAVITY DRAINAGE DISTRICT NO. 4 OF TANGIPAHOA PARISH

(A Component Unit of the Tangipahoa Parish Government)

Amite, Louisiana

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended

December 31, 2021

GRAVITY DRAINAGE DISTRICT NO. 4 OF TANGIPAHOA PARISH

(A Component Unit of the Tangipahoa Parish Government)

Amite, Louisiana

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Independent Accountant's Review Report	. 1
Basic Financial Statements	
Government-wide Financial Statements Statement of Net Position Statement of Activities	
Fund Financial Statements	
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet	6
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position	. 7
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes	8
in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	9
Notes to the Financial Statements	11
Required Supplemental Information	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule General Fund	. 20
Other Supplemental Information	
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head	. 22
Agreed-Upon Procedures Report	
Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures	. 24
Louisiana Attestation Questionnaire	29



60 I COURTNEY DRIVE P. O. Box I 39 I Amite, Louisiana 70422

WWW.LAURAGRAYCPA.COM

PHONE (985) 748-9067 Fax (985) 748-4370 E-Mail: LG@LauragraycPa.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

Board of Commissioners Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana

I have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities of the Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish (Drainage District), a component unit of the Tangipahoa Parish Government, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, which collectively comprises the Drainage District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents and the related notes of the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of the Drainage District's management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, I do not express such an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant's Responsibility

My responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require me to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether I am aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. I believe that the results of my procedures provide a reasonable basis for my conclusion.

I am required to be independent of the Drainage District and to meet my other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to my review.

Accountant's Conclusion

Based on my review, I am not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the following supplementary information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule Management's Discussion and Analysis Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

The accompanying Budgetary Comparison Schedule has been reviewed by me, and based on my review, I am not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the information in order for it to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. I have not audited the information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion on such information.

Management has omitted the Management Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. The Management Discussion and Analysis, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical content.

Supplementary Information

The accompanying schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to the agency head, political subdivision head, or chief executive officer is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The information is the representation of management. I have reviewed the information and, based on my review, I am not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the information in order for it to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. I have not audited the supplementary information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion on such information.

Certified Public Accountant

June 27, 2022

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION December 31, 2021

	Go —	overnmental Activities
Assets Cash Investments Receivables, net of allowances of \$3,750 Capital assets, net Total assets	\$ 	180,665 100,000 221,048 8,493 510,206
<u>Liabilities</u> Accounts payable Total liabilities	-	76,044 76,044
<u>Net Position</u> Net investments in capital assets Restricted for constructing drainage works Unrestricted	-	8,493 167,189 258,480
Total Net Position	\$ _	434,162

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

	_	Governmental Activities
Expenses		
Public works- Drainage		
General Government:		
Salaries and related benefits	\$	10,019
Compensation paid board members		11,400
Professional fees		12,093
Official journal		841
Office expense		1,855
Statutory charges		8,312
Insurance		6,474
Miscellaneous		988
Depreciation		3,674
Public works - drainage		325,158
Total Expenses		380,814
General Revenues: Taxes:		
Property taxes		213,649
State revenue sharing		5,307
Interest earning		723
Other income		2,857
Total General Revenues		222,536
Change in Net Position		(158,278)
Net Position - Beginning		592,440
Net Position - Ending	\$	434,162

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds December 31, 2021

		Govern				
	-	General Pro		Capital Projects Fund	-	Total (Memorandum Only)
ASSETS Cash Investments Receivables Allowance for uncollectibles	\$	89,512 - 180,900 (3,000)	\$	91,153 100,000 43,898 (750)	\$	180,665 100,000 224,798 (3,750)
TOTAL ASSETS	\$_	267,412	\$	234,301	\$	501,713
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE Liabilities: Accounts payable Deductions from ad valorem taxes payable Total Liabilities	\$	2,282 6,650 8,932	\$	65,450 1,662 67,112	\$	67,732 8,312 76,044
Fund balance: Restricted for constructing drainage works Unassigned Total Fund Balance		- 258,480 258,480		167,189 167,189		167,189 258,480 425,669
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE	\$	267,412	\$	234,301	\$	501,713

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION December 31, 2021

Fund balance - governmental funds	\$ 425,669
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:	
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. These assets consists of:	
Governmental capital assets, net of depreciation	 8,493
Net position of governmental activities	\$ 434,162

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

		Capital General Projects Fund Fund			Total (Memorandum Only)			
<u>REVENUES</u> Ad valorem taxes Intergovernmental:	\$	170,919	\$	42,730	\$	213,649		
State revenue sharing		5,307		-		5,307		
Interest earnings Other Income		150 2,857		573		723 2,857		
Total Revenues		179,233		43,303		222,536		
EXPENDITURES General government: Salaries and related benefits		10,019		-		10,019		
Compensation paid board members		11,400		-		11,400		
Professional fees Official journal		12,093 841		-		12,093 841		
Office expense		1,855		-		1,855		
Statutory charges		6,650		1,662		8,312		
Insurance		6,474		-		6,474		
Miscellaneous expense Public works - drainage	••••••	988 243,758		- 81,400		988 325,158		
Total Expenditures		294,078	. <u> </u>	83,062		377,140		
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES		(114,845)		(39,759)		(154,604)		
FUND BALANCES Fund balance - beginning of year		373,325		206,948		580,273		
Fund balance - end of year	\$	258,480	\$_	167,189	\$	425,669		

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds	\$ (154,604)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:	
Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. These differences consist of:	
Purchased capital assets Depreciation expense	 (3,674)
Change in net position of governmental activities	\$ (158,278)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

INTRODUCTION

Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish (Drainage District), Amite, Louisiana, was created September 16, 1947, under the authority of Louisiana Revised Statutes 38:1751-1802. It was established for the purpose of opening and maintaining all natural drains in the district where drainage is accomplished using the natural force of gravity. This may be accomplished by cutting and opening new drains, ditches, and canals. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 38:1758, the drainage district is governed by five commissioners. These five commissioners are jointly referred to as the board of commissioners and are appointed by the Tangipahoa Parish Government.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying component unit financial statements of the Drainage District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

This financial report has been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement 34, *Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments*, issued in June 1999. Management has elected to not present the Management's Discussion and Analysis.

B. <u>Reporting Entity</u>

The Drainage District is a component unit of the Tangipahoa Parish Government, the financial reporting entity. The Tangipahoa Parish Government is financially accountable for the Drainage District because it appoints the Drainage District board members and has the ability to impose its will on them.

The accompanying financial statements present information only on the funds maintained by the Drainage District and do not present information on the Tangipahoa Parish Government, the general government services provided by that governmental unit, or the other governmental units that comprise the financial reporting entity.

C. Fund Accounting

The Drainage District uses fund accounting to maintain its financial records and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions relating to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

Funds of the Drainage District are classified as governmental funds. Governmental funds account for the Drainage District's general activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets, and the servicing of general long-term debt. Governmental funds of the Drainage District include:

1. General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Drainage District. It accounts for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

2. Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for financial resources received and used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital facilities not reported in the other governmental funds.

D. Measurement Focus / Basis of Accounting

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Drainage District implemented GASB Statement No. 63, *Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows, or Resources and Net Position.* GASB 63 provides guidance for reporting deferred outflows or resources, deferred inflows or resources, and net position in a statement of financial position and related disclosures. The reader will note a change in terminology from "net assets" to "net position".

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the Drainage District as a whole. These statements include all the activities of the Drainage District with the interfund activities removed. Information contained in these statements reflects the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The net position of a government will be broken down into three categories - 1) net investment in capital assets; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange or exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange occurs (regardless of when cash is received or disbursed). Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Interest earnings and other revenues not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The Drainage District implemented GASB Statement No. 72, *Fair Value Measurement and Application* as it relates to donated capital assets. Donated capital assets are to be measured at acquisition value.

Basic Financial Statements - Governmental Funds

The amounts reflected in the General Fund are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of the current financial resources. This approach is then reconciled, through adjustment, to a government-wide view of the Drainage District's operations.

The amounts reflected in the General fund use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Drainage District considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after the fiscal year end, except ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing, which are recognized in the period for which they are levied. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for interest and principal payments on general long-term debt which are recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgements which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures:

Revenues

Revenues from ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing are recognized in the period for which they are levied. Investment earnings are recognized when earned. Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received.

Expenditures

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred.

Reconciliation

Explanation of differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net position is presented in the statement of the basic financial statements. Explanation of differences between the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities is presented in the statement of the basic financial statements.

E. Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The Drainage District uses the following budget practices:

- 1. The Drainage District prepares budgets on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Drainage District adopted a budget for the General Fund.
- The Drainage District's administrator prepares the proposed budget and submits it to the board of commissioners no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. The proposed budget for 2021 was presented to the board of commissioners on November 30, 2020.
- 3. The public is notified that the proposed budget is available for public inspection and a public hearing is called.
- 4. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten (10) days after publication of the call for the hearing. The public hearing on the proposed budget for 2021 was held on November 30, 2020.
- 5. After holding the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted. The proposed budget for 2021 was adopted on November 30, 2020.

- 6. Budgetary amendments require the approval of the board of commissioners. The budget for 2021 was amended once during the year with that amendment being approved on November 29, 2021.
- 7. All budgetary appropriations lapse at year-end
- 8. Periodic budget comparisons are made as a part of interim reporting. Budgeted amounts included in the accompanying financial statements include the originally adopted budget amounts and subsequent amendments.

F. Deposits and Investments

The Drainage District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less from the date of acquisition. State law and the Drainage District investment policy allow the Drainage District to invest in collateralized certificates of deposits, government-backed securities, commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and the mutual funds consisting solely of government-backed securities, commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and mutual funds consisting solely of government-backed securities.

G. Receivables

Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Uncollectible amounts for property taxes are recorded as a reduction of current revenues.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated costs if historical costs are not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Drainage District maintains a threshold level of \$1,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset lives is not capitalized.

The cost of cutting and opening of new drains, ditches, and canals is not capitalized.

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated Lives
5 - 10 Years
5 Years
5 - 15 Years

I. Compensated Absences

The Drainage District has no full-time employees; therefore, the district has no pension plan or vacation and sick leave policies.

J. <u>Restricted Net Position</u>

For the government-wide statement of net position, net position are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either:

- externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; and
- imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Drainage District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

K. Fund Equity

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Beginning with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, the Drainage District implemented GASB Statement 54, *Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions*. This statement provides more clearly defined find balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund balance more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purpose for which resources can be used:

• Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

The Drainage District did not have any non-spendable resources as of year-end.

• Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of resources that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

The Drainage District has a fund that is restricted by an authorized millage passed by taxpayers for capital projects/canal construction.

Committed: This classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by the Drainage District's Board of Commissioners. These
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Drainage District's Board of
Commissioners removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action that
was employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed
for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

The Drainage district did not have any committed resources as of year-end.

 Assigned: This classification includes spendable amounts that are reported in governmental funds other than the General Fund, that are neither restricted not committed, and amounts in the General Fund that are intended to be used for a specific purpose in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement 54. The intent of an assigned fund balance should be expressed by the Drainage District who has the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.

The Drainage District did not have any assigned fund balance as of year-end.

Unassigned: This classification is the residual fund balance for the General Fund. It also
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund.

When fund balance resources are available for a specific purpose in multiple classifications, the Drainage District would use the most restrictive funds first in the following order: restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned as they are needed. However, it reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first and to defer the use to the other classified funds.

L. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates

2. LEVIED TAXES

The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes:

Assessed valuation for 2021	\$44,074,629
Authorization and Levied Millage General Fund Capital Projects Fund Total millage	<u>MILLAGE</u> 2.99 <u>1.99</u> <u>4.98</u>
Total tax levy	\$ 219,491

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 each year. Taxes are levied by the Drainage District during the year and actually billed to taxpayers and become due in November. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of each year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year billed and recognized as revenue when billed. The Tangipahoa Parish Sheriff bills and collects the property taxes using the assessed value determined by the Tax Assessor of Tangipahoa Parish. The taxes are generally collected in December of the current year and January and February of the ensuing year.

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

At December 31, 2021, the Drainage District had deposits and investments (book balances) totaling \$280,665 as follows:

Interest-bearing demand deposits		180,665
Investment in 12 month certificates of deposit		100,000
Total	\$	280,665

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties.

Per GASB Statement 3, as amended by GASB 40; the Drainage District's deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk since the collateral pledged by the fiscal agent is not held in the Drainage District's name.

At December 31, 2021, the Drainage District has \$284,807 in deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are secured from risk by \$250,000 of federal deposit insurance and \$34,807 is uninsured but collateralized with securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank.

Louisiana Revised statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Drainage District that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

4. RECEIVABLES

The following is a summary of receivables at December 31, 2021:

Class of Receivable		General <u>Fund</u>		Capital Projects <u>Fund</u>		<u>Total</u>
Ad valorem taxes State revenue sharing	\$	175,593 5,307	\$	43,898	\$	219,491 5,307
Total	\$_	180,900	\$_	43,898	\$_	224,798

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets and depreciation for governmental activities as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, are as follows:

	Balance						Balance	
	12/31/20			Increases Decreases			12/31/21	
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:								
Vehicle	\$	2,093	\$	-	\$	-	\$	2,093
Equipment		20,715		_			-	20,715
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated		22,808					-	22,808
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:								
Vehicle		908		419		-		1,327
Equipment		9,733		3,255			-	12,988
Total Accumulated Depreciation		10,641	. .	3,674			-	14,315
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net		12,167		(3,674)			-	8,493
Government Activities Capital Assets,	\$	12,167	\$	(3,674)	\$	_	\$	8,493

Depreciation expense of \$3,674 for the year ended December 31, 2021, was charged to the governmental activities.

6. LEASES

The Drainage District has no capital leases or operating leases at December 31, 2021.

7. COMPENSATION PAID TO COMMISSIONERS

Amounts paid to the Board of Commissioners is as follows:

Board of Commissioners

Mark Miller, President	\$ 2,400
Kyle Warren	2,100
Lafete Tucker	2,400
Morgan Edwards	2,100
James Ricks	 2,400
	\$ 11,400

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Drainage District is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Drainage District attempts to minimize risk from significant losses through the purchase of workers compensation insurance (includes contract workers) and a surety bond.

9. CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK - DEPOSITS

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Drainage District's deposits may not be returned to it. The Drainage District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2021, \$34,807 of the drainage District's bank balances are exposed to custodial credit risk. The \$34,807 is uninsured but collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution's trust department or agent, but not in the Drainage District's name.

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no related party transaction.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Drainage District has no public works contract or commitments open at December 31, 2021.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 31, 2022, the board approved entering into a contract with ELOS Environmental, LLC to provide professional services regarding permitting and the request for reimbursement from NRCS for a total of \$53,100.

On March 28, 2022, the board approved a bid with M/S Dozer Services for \$3,100 for the Paul Francois location on Puleston Road.

On March 28, 2022, the board approved a bid with M/S Dozer Services for \$12,900 for the Velma/Bickham Chapel Road location.

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through June 27, 2022, the date the financial statements were available for issuance. No other events were noted requiring recording or additional disclosure in the financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2021.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Devenues	-	Original Budget		Final Budget		Actual	-	Variance Favorable (Unfavorable)
<u>Revenues</u> Ad valorem taxes	\$	155,000	\$	155,000	\$	170,919	\$	15,919
State revenue sharing	Ý	5,600	Ψ	5,600	Ψ	5,307	Ŷ	(293)
Interest earnings		110		110		150		40
Other Income	-	-		-	-	2,857		2 <u>,</u> 857
Total Revenues	-	160,710		160,710	-	179,233	-	18,523
Expenditures								
General government:		40.000		40.000		40.040		(10)
Salaries and related benefits Compensation paid board members		10,000 15,000		10,000 15,000		10,019 11,400		(19) 3,600
Professional fees		11,000		11,000		12,093		(1,093)
Official journal		3,000		3,000		841		2,159
Office expense		1,500		2,100		1,855		245
Statutory charges		7,600		7,600		6,650		950
Insurance		10,000		10,000		6,474		3,526
Miscellaneous expense		10,000		9,400		988		8,412
Public works – drainage	-	287,610		287,610	-	243,758	-	43,852
Total Expenditures	-	355,710		355,710	. ,	294,078	-	61,632
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES								
OVER EXPENDITURES	-	(195,000)		(195,000)	-	(114,845)		80,155
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE		(195,000)		(195,000)		(114,845)		80,155
Fund Balance - beginning	-	373,325		373,325		373,325	-	
Fund Balance – ending	\$_	178,325	\$	178,325	\$	258,480	\$	80,155

See independent accountant's review report.

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Agency Head: Mark Miller, President

Purpose	<u>Amount</u>
Contract Services	<u>\$2,400</u> <u>\$2,400</u>

See independent accountant's review report.

AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT



601 COURTNEY DRIVE P. O. Box 1391 Amite, Louisiana 70422

WWW.LAURAGRAYCPA.COM

PHONE (985) 748-9067 Fax (985) 748-4370 E-Mail: LG@Lauragraycpa.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Board of Commissioners Gravity Drainage District No. 4 Of Tangipahoa Parish Tangipahoa Parish Council Amite, Louisiana

I have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, on the District's compliance with certain laws and regulations contained in the accompanying Louisiana Attestation Questionnaire during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, as required by Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 and the *Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide*. The District's management is responsible for its financial records and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified parties. Consequently, I make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

Pubic Bid Law

1. Obtain documentation for all expenditures made during the year for materials and supplies exceeding \$30,000, and public works exceeding \$250,000. Compare the documentation for these expenditures to Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 39:1551-39:1775 (the state procurement code) or R.S. 38:2211-2296 (the public bid law), whichever is applicable; and report whether the expenditures were made in accordance with these laws.

Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish did not have any expenditures for materials and supplies exceeding \$30,000 or public works exceeding \$250,000.

Code of Ethics for Public Officials and Public Employees

2. Obtain from management a list of the immediate family members of each board members as defined by LSA-RS 42:1101-1124 (the code of ethics)

Management provided me with the required list.

3. Obtain from management a listing of all employees paid during the period under examination.

Management provided me with the required list.

Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures - continued

4. Determine whether any of those employees included in the listing obtained from management in agreed upon procedure (3) were also included on the listing obtained from management in agreed-upon procedure (2) as immediate family members

Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish does not have any employees who are family members of the board.

5. Obtain a list of all disbursements made during the year; and a list of outside business interests of board members, employees, and board members' and employees' immediate families. Report whether any vendors appear on both lists.

Management provided the requested information. None of the businesses of board members, employees, and board members' and employees' immediate families appeared as vendors on the list of disbursements.

Budgeting

6. Obtained a copy of the legally adopted budget and all amendments.

Management provided me with a copy of the original budget and the amended budget.

7. Trace documentation for the adoption of the budget and approval of any amendments to minute book, and report whether there are exceptions.

I traced the adoption of the original budget to the minutes of a meeting held November 30, 2020. I traced the adoption of the amended budget to the minutes of a meeting held November 29, 21.

The budget was not adopted by ordinance.

8. Compare the revenues and expenditures of the final budget to actual revenues and expenditures to determine if actual revenues failed to meet budgeted revenues by 5% or more or if actual expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts by more than 5%.

I compared the revenues and expenditures of the final budget to actual revenues and expenditures.

Actual revenues, exceeded budgeted revenues. Expenditures for the year did not exceed budgeted amounts.

Accounting and Reporting

- 9. Obtain the list of all disbursements made during the fiscal year. Randomly select six disbursement and obtain documentation from management for these disbursements. Compare the selected disbursements to the supporting documentation, and:
 - (a) Report whether the six disbursements agree to the amount and the payee in the supporting documentation.

I examined supporting documentation for each of the six selected disbursements and found that for all disbursements, payment was for the proper amount and made to the correct payee.

(b) Report whether the six disbursements were coded to the correct fund and general ledger account.

All of the payments were properly coded to the correct fund and general ledger account.

Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures – continued

(c) Report whether the six disbursements were approved in accordance with management's policies and procedures.

The District's policies and procedures state that the chairman of the District's Board of Commissioners must approve all disbursements by initialing the invoice with subsequent approval by the full board. Effective March 30, 2020, due to COVID-19, the board suspended the requirement of having the invoices initialed by the chairman. The Board approved the payment of the invoices during the monthly teleconference. In person meetings resumed, May 17, 2021, therefore, the requirement of initialing the invoices by the chairman was re-instituted.

Only one of the five disbursements was approved for payment via teleconference as traced to the minute book. The other four disbursements were properly approved by the chairperson as indicated by his initials.

Meetings

10. Obtain evidence from management to support that agendas for meetings recorded in the minute book were posted or advertised as required by R.S. 42:11 through 42:28 (the open meetings law); and report whether there are any exceptions.

Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish is required to post a notice of each meeting and the accompanying agenda on the door of the Town Hall no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting. I examined documentation that such notices were posted.

Debt

11. Obtain bank deposit slips for the fiscal year, and scan the deposit slips in order to identify and report whether there are any deposits that appear to be proceeds of bank loans, bonds, or like indebtedness

I noted no deposits which appeared to be proceeds of bank loans, bonds, or the like indebtedness.

Advances and Bonuses

12. Obtain the list of payroll disbursements and meeting minutes of the governing board. Scan these documents to identify and report whether there are any payments or approval of payments to employees that may constitute bonuses, advances, and gifts.

A reading of the minutes of the Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish for the year indicated no approval for payments which may constitute bonuses, advances, or gifts. I also inspected payroll records for the year and noted no instances which would indicate payments to employees which would constitute bonuses, advances, or gifts.

State Audit Law

13. Report whether the agency provided for a timely report in accordance with R.S. 24:513

The District's report is due on June 30, 2022, and it will be submitted by June 30, 2022.

14. Inquire of management and report whether the agency entered into any contracts that utilized state funds as defined in R.S. 39:72.1 A (2); and that were subject to the public bid law (R.S. 38:2211, et seq.), while the agency was not in compliance with R.S. 24:513 (the audit law).

The District did not enter into any contracts that utilized state funds contracts.

Gravity Drainage District No. 4 of Tangipahoa Parish Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures - concluded

Prior Comments and Recommendations

15. Obtain and report management's representation as to whether any prior-year suggestions, exceptions, recommendations, and/or comments have been resolved.

There were no prior year suggestions, exceptions, recommendations, and/or comments.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in *Government Auditing Standard*, issued by the United States Comptroller General. I was not engaged to and did not conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the District's compliance with the foregoing matters. Accordingly, I do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had I performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to my attention that would have been reported to you.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on the District's compliance with certain laws and regulations contained in the accompanying Louisiana Attestation Questionnaire, as required by Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Certified Public Accountant

June 27, 2022

LOUISIANA ATTESTATION QUESTIONNAIRE

LOUISIANA ATTESTATION QUESTIONNAIRE (For Attestation Engagements of Governmental Agencies)

June 21, 2022 (Date Transmitted)

Laura Gray, CPA, LLC

PO Box 1391, 601 Courtney Drive

Amite, LA 70422

In connection with your engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures to the control and compliance matters identified below, as of <u>December 31, 2021</u> and for the year then ended, and as required by Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 24:513 and the *Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide*, we make the following representations to you.

Public Bid Law

It is true that we have complied with the state procurement code (R.S. 39:1551 – 39:1755); the public bid law (R.S. 38:2211-2296), and, where applicable, the regulations of the Division of Administration and the State Purchasing Office.

Code of Ethics for Public Officials and Public Employees

It is true that no employces or officials have accepted anything of value, whether in the form of a service, loan, or promise, from anyone that would constitute a violation of R.S. 42:1101-1124.

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

It is true that no member of the immediate family of any member of the governing authority, or the chief executive of the governmental entity, has been employed by the governmental entity after April 1, 1980, under circumstances that would constitute a violation of R.S. 42:1119.

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

Budgeting

We have complied with the state budgeting requirements of the Local Government Budget Act (R.S. 39:1301-15), R.S. 39:33, or the budget requirements of R.S. 39:1331-1342, as applicable.

Yes[X] No[] N/A[]

Accounting and Reporting

All non-exempt governmental records are available as a public record and have been retained for at least three years, as required by R.S. 44:1, 44:7, 44:31, and 44:36.

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

We have filed our annual financial statements in accordance with R.S. 24:514, and 33:463 where applicable.

We have had our financial statements reviewed in accordance with R.S. 24:513.

Yes [X] No [] N/A [

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

We did not enter into any contracts that utilized state funds as defined in R.S. 39:72.1 A. (2); and that were subject to the public bid law (R.S. 38:2211, et seq.), while the agency was not in compliance with R.S. 24:513 (the audit law).

Yes [X] No [] N/A [] We have complied with R.S. 24:513 A. (3) regarding disclosure of compensation, reimbursements, benefits and other payments to the agency head, political subdivision head, or chief executive officer.

Yes[X]No[]N/A[]

Yes[X]No[]N/A[]

We have complied with R.S. 24:515.2 regarding reporting of pre- and post- adjudication court costs, fines and fees assessed or imposed; the amounts collected; the amounts outstanding; the amounts retained; the amounts disbursed, and the amounts received from disbursements.

We have complied with the provisions of the Open Meetings Law, provided in R.S. 42:11 through 42:28.

It is true we have not incurred any indebtedness, other than credit for 90 days or less to make purchases in the ordinary course of administration, nor have we entered into any lease-purchase agreements, without the approval of the State Bond Commission, as provided by Article VII, Section 8 of the 1974 Louisiana Constitution, Article VI, Section 33 of the 1974 Louisiana Constitution, and R.S. 39:1410.60-1410.65.

Advances and Bonuses It is true we have not advanced wages or salaries to employees or paid bonuses in violation of Article VII, Section 14 of the 1974 Louisiana Constitution, R.S. 14:138, and AG opinion 79-729.

We have resolved all prior-year recommendations and/or comments.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for the Agency's compliance with the foregoing laws and

We acknowledge that we are responsible for determining that that the procedures performed are appropriate for the purposes of this engagement.

We have evaluated our compliance with these laws and regulations prior to making these representations.

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

We have provided you with all relevant information and access under the terms of our agreement.

We have disclosed to you all known noncompliance of the foregoing laws and regulations, as well as any contradictions to the foregoing representations.

We are not aware of any material misstatements in the information we have provided to you.

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

Prior-Year Comments

General

regulations and the internal controls over compliance with such laws and regulations.

Debt

Meetings

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

Yes X] No [] N/A []

Yes [] No [] N/A [X]

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

Yes [X] No [] N/A []

We have disclosed to you any communications from regulatory agencies, internal auditors, other independent practitioners or consultants, and others concerning noncompliance with the foregoing laws and regulations, including communications received during the period under examination; and will disclose to you any such communication received between the end of the period under examination and the date of your report.

Yes[X] No[] N/A[]

We will disclose to you, the Legislative Auditor, and the applicable state grantor agency/agencies all known noncompliance and other events subsequent to the date of this representation and the date of your report that could have a material effect on our compliance with laws and regulations and the internal controls with such laws and regulations, or would require adjustment or modification to the results of the agreed-upon procedures.

Yes[X]No[]N/A[]

The previous responses have been made to the best of	our belief and ki	iowieage.	
May Pm Hourtoon	Secretary	6-21-22	_Date
May fin Hanston	Treasurer	6-21-22	
Marke B. Miller	President	C-21-22	_Date
		6	

The previous responses have been made to the best of our belief and knowledge.